RFP-NIH-NIAID-DMID-06-09
Amendment 1 (Questions & Answers) – 3rd Posting
This Amendment provides questions submitted by potential offerors and the responses provided by the NIAID.  The responses are offered for information only and do not modify or become part of this solicitation.  This Amendment will be updated at least weekly to add any further questions and their related responses.  All potential offerors are advised to refer back to this Amendment for additional Q&A.
“SERVICES FOR PRE-CLINICAL DEVELOPMENT 

OF THERAPEUTIC AGENTS”
	Amendment:
	1 (2nd Posting)

	Amendment Issue Date:
	October 4, 2005  (Questions 1 - 7) – 1st Posting
November 30, 2005 (Questions 8 – 10) – 2nd Posting
December 1, 2005 (Correction to Question 8) – 3rd Posting


	Proposal Due Date/Time:

(UNCHANGED)
	December 16, 2005 at 4:00 p.m., EST 


	Issued By:

(CHANGED)
	Barbara A. Shadrick 
Contracting Officer

CMP/DEA/NIAID/NIH/DHHS

6700-B Rockledge Drive, Room 3214, 

Bethesda, Maryland 20892-7612

bs92y@nih.gov


	Point of Contact:

(CHANGED)
	Amy J. Siller
Contract Specialist

CMP/DEA/NIAID/NIH/DHHS

6700-B Rockledge Drive, Room 3214, 

Bethesda, Maryland 20892-7612  
asiller@niaid.nih.gov





Offerors must acknowledge receipt of Amendment 1, for each posting, on each copy of the proposal submitted.  Failure to receive your acknowledgment of this Amendment may result in the rejection of your proposal. 

The hour and date specified for receipt of proposals HAS NOT been extended. 



THE FOLLOWING PAGES PROVIDE ANSWERS CONCERNING INQUIRIES WE RECEIVED FOR THE ABOVE-NUMBERED ACQUISITION:
Question 1 - Can you briefly explain the RFP's scope, function, and NIAID's vision for the impact of this award?  How many candidate drugs do you envision the contractor could handle? There would likely be limits; how would products be prioritized?  What are the envisioned time frames for evaluations?
Response to Question 1 – NIAID-supported research strives to understand, treat and ultimately prevent the myriad infectious, immunologic and allergic diseases that threaten millions of human lives. The NIAID Division of Microbiology and Infectious Diseases (DMID) supports extramural research to control and prevent diseases caused by virtually all infectious agents. This includes basic and applied research to discover, develop and evaluate therapeutics and is funded through a variety of research grants and contracts. The development and introduction of new therapeutics against potential agents of bioterrorism (http://www2.niaid.nih.gov/biodefense/bandc_priority.htm), drug resistant pathogens, emerging and re-emerging infectious diseases, as well as infectious diseases prevalent in resource-limited countries remain a high public health priority. This solicitation is meant to establish a resource for the DMID to advance the discovery and development therapeutics to meet priority biodefense and public-health needs. The services will be used primarily to augment discovery and development of therapeutics that are currently funded by other mechanisms but require additional support for very specific and unique services. It is envisioned that the Contractor will provide a broad scope of activities in parallel on potentially a dozen or more therapeutic candidates/products each year depending on the nature and scope of the required services. 

Question 2 - We understand from NIAID's RFP that there will be one awardee?  What is the total amount of that award?  Will it be renewable?

Response to Question 2 – Page 36, paragraph c., Type of Contract and Number of Awards, provides information on the number and type of anticipated contract awards. You are also directed to page 34, paragraph a.(f) of this solicitation for more information.  The NIAID chooses not to post the estimated cost of the resultant award as the final cost in a competitive solicitation is subject to negotiations.  If by renewable you mean will this procurement be recompeted at the end of the contract’s 5-year period, the answer is not known at this time. 
Question 3 - There are many labs offering preclinical services.  What specific projects would this RFP undertake that are not currently underway?

Response to Question 3 - This RFP will provide a broad scope of preclinical services to support the discovery and evaluation of new drugs for high-priority biodefense and public-health diseases and will complement the current portfolio of drug discovery and development activities that are funded by NIAID.  While the overall suite of services to be provided under the contract is comprehensive, the intent is to provide individual services on a case-by-case basis for a diverse collection of product candidates.

Question 4 - Who does the NIAID expect to submit proposals for this contract?  Universities?  Private health-care institutions?  Pharmaceutical companies who will collaborate with a network of investigators? 

Response to Question 4 - This contract award is being solicited under full and open competition, which means that any type organization may submit a proposal.  Because this is a competitive solicitation, we are not at liberty to identify those offerors who express an interest or intent to submit proposals.  Subcontracting is allowed, however, the prime contractor (identified as the “Contractor” in the statement of work)  must provide a minimum set of services, which are described in detail in the Statement of Work (see Attachment 3, page 3, second paragraph, items (1) through (10) of the solicitation). 

Question 5 - Are we correct in understanding that the successful offeror for this RFP would provide "one-stop shopping" for an early-stage company needing a suite of preclinical services for development of one or more compounds, and that such a company would apply to NIAID for such support, which would then be approved or not based on NIAID's assessment of the potential utility of the compound(s)?

Response to Question 5 - NIAID Program staff will work with companies/Investigators that need assistance with preclinical services to advance/evaluate therapeutic concepts.  Companies/
investigators will make their request through the appropriate NIAID program staff.  NIAID will base the use of contract services on the technical merit and feasibility of the request; programmatic need/balance; and available funding.

Question 6 - Once the vendor is identified, what criteria will NIAID use to determine whether a particular applicant/compound is worthy of support?  In making such decisions, will NIAID seek external expertise such as that which could be provided by IDSA (medical needs)?  

Response to Question 6 - See Response to Question 5, above.

Question 7 - If the therapeutics make it through clinical trials, who will decide whether they get submitted to the FDA and for which indications?  What criteria will be used for such decision-making? What is the mechanism for determining who will manufacture and market the drug and who retains "rights" to the product once it starts being sold, i.e., who gets a percentage of the profits... the government?

Response to Question 7 - Intellectual Property and Ownership of therapeutics agents will remain solely with the company/investigator requesting services through the NIAID.  Decisions regarding manufacturing, commercialization, and distribution of the final product rest with the entities that hold the Intellectual Property Rights.

Question 8 - Please indicate whether past performance information and resumes are considered part of the 150-page technical proposal limitation or whether these sections can be provided as addenda or attachments.

Response to Question 8 - There appears to be conflicting instructions in the RFP.  
· Block 8 of the Cover Page states, “Page Limitations:  Technical Proposal - 150 pages total (excluding all addenda and attachments).”  
· Page 49, Section L.2., bulleted paragraph entitled “Past Performance Information,” includes the following sentence, “a) Offerors shall submit the following information as part of their [business/technical] proposal.”  The selection should have been “business”.
· ATTACHMENT 5, APPENDIX A, third paragraph states “YOU ARE REMINDED THAT THE TOTAL PAGE LIMIT FOR THE TECHNICAL PROPOSAL PACKAGE IS 150 PAGES, EXCLUDING APPENDICES PROVIDING STANDARD OPERATING PROCEDURES.”  
REVISED RESPONSE to Question 8 (12/01/05):  The response to your question is the total page limit for the Technical Proposal is 150 pages.  Included should be the listing of all Standard Operating Procedures (SOPs) and any other appendices.  The past performance information is to be included in the Business Proposal only.  Resumes of Key Personnel should be included with the Technical Proposal and should be limited to 2-3 pages each.  Resumes of all other non-key personnel should be included with the Business Proposal.

Question 9 - How many shipments of biological agents should an offeror assume for each year? How many shipments of chemicals?   

Response to Question 9 - In addition to the guidance provided in Attachment 6, paragraph (5), offerors should assume that an equal number of samples will be stored at room temperature, refrigerated, and frozen (-20 C).  Biological agents that require storage and handling in a  BSL2  or  BSL3 facility are estimated to be less than 500 total vials, although this number could increase in later years of the contract.   

Question 10 -   We assume that the 11 services identified in Appendix B, Section 8, are to have budgets unrelated to the 14 FTE target.  Please confirm this assumption and that bidders should construct the following budgets: 

-        One budget based on the LOE (26,800 hours / 14FTE’s) specified within the RFP

-        Stand-alone budgets for each of the 11 specific tasks listed in Attachment 6, Section 8 (a-k)
Response to Question 10 - We are requesting one budget based on the LOE (26,800 hours / 14FTE’s) specified within the RFP that incorporates the stand-alone budgets for each of the 11 specific tasks listed in Attachment 6, Section 8 (a-k)
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